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payments to Highway Data, which is a miss -- company that's owned by 

Mr. Colucci. 

And I don't know the amount of those as we sit here today.  

But because of those two things, Mr. Vanderbilt as chairman called up, 

Gibson Dunn and said, hey, can you do an independent -- can you do an 

investigation to determine whether this guys independent.  Gibson Dunn 

said fine.  They started it.  They called Mr. Colucci. 

And then, sometime thereafter, call a couple days, they 

received a -- an email I think from Mr. Goldstein saying that what we're 

going to do is unethical.  And Gibson Dunn backed out.  So there's 

never an investigation done as to whether or not Mr. Colucci had 

financial interest with the company.  

After that occurred, they had these serious of directors 

meetings that we've already talked about.  I won't go back into that.   

And but I will say that Mr. Colucci is the deciding vote on 

all -- in most of these meetings.  You know, in counsel's opposition they 

talk about, well, it doesn't matter if Mr. Colucci was independent or not 

because he wasn't the deciding vote on the terminations.   

You know, that's not the issue today, Your Honor.  Whether 

it's void ab initio or not, you know, we'll get to that a later -- before you 

determine that, you have to determine whether he's independent or not.   

So what we're requesting is that someone -- an independent 

counsel be appointed to conduct an investigation.   

Now earlier, I suggested that perhaps Mr. Urda [phonetic] do 

it.  Since then, I've been educated this is kind of a specialty area.  And 
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it's probably better to get someone from New York or maybe L.A., who's 

got experience with SEC regs and this independent counsel situation.   

And so, what I proposed to counsel we do is we put pick three 

names.  They pick three names.  We flip a coin and then we knock one 

out.  They knock one out.  We knock one out.  They knock one out.  Kind 

of similar to what we do when we pick an arbitrator.   

And that way, we can get someone who's pretty independent,  

I would think, as the independent counsel.   

And I'm willing to listen to any other procedure.  I think the 

Court would have a tough time just picking someone out from Nevada 

Bar, because like I already said, it's kind of a specialty area.  

So I think maybe having the parties propose candidates, 

maybe even propose them to the Court.  I'm not adverse to that, either.   

But in their opposition, they also say, well, we should hire 

Howard & Howard to do it.  Well, Howard & Howard was the firm that did 

what I call the whistleblowers white wash.   

And you know, when we had all these whistleblower 

complaints against the current CFO and CE -- and COO, Howard & 

Howard wrote us a letter saying, well, can we review your client 

tomorrow with your relationship with the whistleblower complaint.   

And we said, well, we got hearing starting on Monday.  So 

tomorrow, Friday, is probably not good for us.  And so, but we will set a 

date immediately after the hearing's over.  

And so instead of listening to our side of the story, they issued 

a report on Sunday saying, oh, these whistleblower complaints have no 
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merit, which was kind of astounding I think when you issue a report 

without hearing the whistleblower's -- any of the whistleblowers as I think 

there are five or six of these, any of their concerns.  Didn't listen to any 

of them.   

So that's who they proposed as independent counsel or 

special counsel.  I don't think that Howard & Howard would be 

appropriate.   

You know, I don't have anything against Howard & Howard.  

We actually represent Howard & Howard, but I just don't think they'd be 

appropriate because of their prior relationship on the whistleblower case.   

But anyway, I think there is a need for a special counsel.  

There's been no dispute whatsoever at any time that Chairman 

Vanderbilt did not have the authority.   

And remember, he's still the Chairman.  He's on the Board of 

directors.  He's the Chairman as we sit here today.   

There's been no dispute that he did not have the authority to 

start an investigation.  And I don't think there's been any 

dispute -- there's any dispute that there should be some vetting here.   

I mean, counsel wants to vett Mr. Miller with really no reason 

that I can see, but in any event, he wants to do vetting and he is going to 

do vetting of some sort.  

I think where we've got Mr. Colucci here and we have two 

known instances that both -- either one of which arguably violate the 

independent status, two known ones right now, that I think we should 

appoint a special counsel to do that.  I see no reason not to.   
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And so, for that reason, and this is probably the oldest motion 

on the docket because we've been talking about this from day one.   

And so, Your Honor, we'd ask that the Court grant the motion 

to appoint a special counsel.  And that the procedure would be as I 

indicated, the Court come up with its own procedures to determine who 

that person would be.   

THE COURT:  Okay, thank you.   

MR. KEMP:  Oh, yeah, also, Your Honor, I forgot 

there's -- there was a failure there -- it's not just the financial interests, 

but on the questionnaire or his resume he lists that he has certain 

position with certain companies.   

We don't think those are accurate statements.  And we also 

think he's failed to disclose some interests, too.  So it's not just the two 

financial interests.  It's those other subjects as well.   

THE COURT:  All right, sir?   

MR. CLARK:  Your Honor in response, I just want to make a 

couple points.  First, this idea that Mr. Colucci wasn't vetted at all is just 

simply not true as Mr. Kemp admitted.   

He did fill out the paperwork.  It was the Board itself that 

vetted him.  And just like Mr. Kemp said kind of rushed him through 

because they wanted him on the Board as an independent director.   

As far as what -- whether it's a somehow voiding his vote ab 

initio whether the NASDAQ rules or NRS 78 supports him invalidating 

his votes because of his supposed dependence, none of those sources 

support voiding his vote in any way.   
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In fact, even if we were going to accept the NASDAQ rules as 

a basis for voiding Mr. Colucci's vote, the NASDAQ rules themselves 

allow a cure -- I'm sorry, a curative provision, not a expulsion provision 

for a Board member.   

And so, even if we were going to accept that the NASDAQ 

rule somehow would govern here, it simply would not apply to any of the 

votes that he made before.  And their reliance there is a red herring.   

As for Howard & Howard, Your Honor, when the whistleblower 

complaints came in, the timing of them was somewhat suspect after the 

filing of this lawsuit.  The first thing that they did, the first thing that Mr. 

Colucci and the other Board members did was retain independent 

counsel.   

And this kind of assumption that Howard & Howard white 

washed that investigation or didn't do -- didn't fulfill their own duty under 

the Rules of Professional Conduct to the client, the company, not to Mr. 

Colucci or excuse me to the Board not to Mr. Colucci has no evidentiary 

support.  There's no contention that Howard & Howard was in any way 

partial here.   

Similarly, this idea -- 

THE COURT:  I have a question for you.  And understand this 

similar to Mr. Miller, I'm looking at this from the position that I think I 

won't call it a presumption or inference, but if I do, lawyers will try to hold 

that to me.  

But my point is this.  I'm looking at it through the lens that 

hypothetically, Mr. Colucci is impotent, right?  But here's my point.  Don't 
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we have to go through some processes to make that determination?   

And the reason why I bring that up is this.  If they found out 

that he was independent, I don't have to worry about any potential 

penalties or anything like that, right?  Do we discontinue the -- in that 

position.   

I only have to worry about that if there's some sort of negative 

result from the investigation, right?   

MR. CLARK:  That's correct, Your Honor.  If he's independent, 

then this is baseless. 

The problem is that's kind of the ultimate issue of the case.  

And Defendants have said they wanted to conduct 30 depositions.  I 

mean, they're going to have a chance to explore this supposed 

dependence or lack of independence of Mr. Colucci. 

And to say that another firm that the Board hired to do that 

and who is our proposal couldn't do that is frankly absurd.   

The -- and really, the -- their excuse me, the fact that he could 

be dependent or could independent I think at this point, Your Honor, the 

presumption or the status quo is that he was independent and made 

votes as an independent director.  The Board found him to be that at the 

very --  

THE COURT:  And I'm not necessarily disagreeing with it.  I'm 

just looking at this slightly differently in this regard.  It's just like as it 

pertained to Mr. Miller, there appears to be an issue here.   

And I realize it wasn't a significant issue before the 

appointment of Mr. Miller, but there's been allegations of lack of 
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independence, right?   

And I said, okay, that's fine, but if you want to conduct some 

discovery or some sort of investigation on that, that's fine.   

Why shouldn't I say the same thing as it pertains to Mr. 

Colucci, especially under the facts where there are NASDAQ rules in 

place, right, as it pertains to independence?   

And why would that not make sense?  Why wouldn't that be 

the appropriate way to handle this?   

MR. CLARK:  Well, I think Your Honor's already answered that 

question by expediting discovery allowing the Defendants to hold that 

positions and explore this.   

If there is truly an issue, and I think we could re-visit whether a 

special counsel needed to flush that out, but at this point, I think it would 

be redundant to the discovery of the Defendants are already going to do.   

And it kind of goes to the ultimate issue of their payment.  And 

to kind of refresh the Court's memory, when this was filed, there were no 

claims from the Defendants.  The Defendants' claims were brought on I 

think a Monday in some counterclaims.   

And so, when we opposed this motion, and when they 

requested this relief, the only claims here were Vinco's claims.   

And so, to kind of expand where and spend more of the 

company's money on special counsel, when the Defendants are going to 

be investigating that on their own, probably you know, with a finetooth 

comb, the appointment of a third-party is just unnecessary.   

And this contention that Mr. Kemp makes it somehow the 
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Board pressured Gibson Dunn into not conducting an investigation, I 

mean, we're talking about Gibson Dunn.  This is no slouch.   

And so, if they did not see there was going to be an issue with 

their investigation, they could have remained on.  They chose not to.  It 

wasn't that they were forced from the situation.   

And so, with that, Your Honor, the NASDAQ rules, while they 

govern listing of the company shares, and while that's important, Mr. 

Colucci was vetted at the beginning.  The Board approved them.  They 

sat him.  He made the votes and the votes were valid.   

When we get to the July 24th hearing pursuant to July 24th 

meeting, the Defendant simply lost that vote.  And we make the point 

that even if he took Mr. Colucci's vote out and you did find as the 

Defendants asked that it was void, the vote was still 2 to 1.  They still 

lost.   

THE COURT:  Here's my next question.  What if hypothetically 

there was an independent investigation conducted prior to his 

appointment on the Board and it was determined that he was not 

independent, wouldn't that have impacted his ability to sit on the Board?   

MR. CLARK:  It could have, Your Honor, but if we're looking at 

the NRS 78, I mean, where independence really comes in is what 

committees you can sit on, where you can -- what your what you're able 

to do relative to your own compensation.   

But I haven't seen authority from Defendants other than these 

NASDAQ rules that would support his removal and voiding all of his 

votes just based simply on the allegations that he is not an independent.   
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THE COURT:  All right.  Anything else, sir?   

MR. CLARK:  No, I would just note, Your Honor, that it's 

somewhat ironic that we need to select names -- six names.  We're 

going to flip a coin to appoint a special counsel to investigate Mr. Colucci 

when we didn't get to do that with Mr. Miller, who will be making the 

same choices as Mr. Colucci. 

And so, given that it certainly has not seemed to go, we didn't 

have the opportunity despite Mr. Connot's suggestion at the hearing.  I 

just find it a little bit inequitable here now that we're talking about Mr. 

Colucci that this -- that we'll get a choice under this special counsel.  

So with that, Your Honor, unless you have any other 

questions?   

THE COURT:  Not at this time, sir, but thank you.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, Mr. Kemp has ceded his rebuttal 

to me so if I could.  Your Honor, the -- I appreciate the question you 

asked and the comments you made regarding the NASDAQ rules.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. PARKER:  And as soon as you said that, it triggered the 

difference in the requirement to vett and the importance of the difference 

in the requirements to vett.  

You've already given the Plaintiff an opportunity to vet Mr. 

Miller as a CEO.  The vetting we're speaking of concerns a person who's 

not only a CEO, but a Board member.  Supposedly, an independent 

Board member.   

NASDAQ Rule 5605 defines what a independent director is 
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and what precludes a person from being an independent director, one of 

which is being an executive officer.   

So as soon as Mr. Colucci became a CEO, he could no longer 

qualify as an independent director pursuant to NASDAQ Rule 5605.   

So, certainly, if Mr. Taska and Mr. Clark believe that there's 

some real importance to vetting Mr. Miller, certainly they cannot contest 

the higher level of scrutiny that's involved in vetting a CEO and a 

supposed independent Board member.   

That's what the NASDAQ Rule requires.  And Mr. Clark hit 

something that Mr. Rulis was whispering in my ears.  All of his decisions, 

all of Mr. Colucci's votes as a Board member, supposed independent 

Board member as well as his votes for recommendations as a member 

of the audit committee or the compensation committee are now all in 

question, Your Honor.   

And when Mr. Clark mentioned sitting on a committee, that 

rung true.  And it should resonate with the Court.   

Not only his votes as a Board member, his decisions as a 

CEO, but his decisions, his votes, his participation in decisions as a 

audit committee and compensation committee member are all now 

perhaps void, voidable, or void ab initio.  

And so, Your Honor, I think Mr. Clark has helped support our 

motion.  And certainly, I don't believe that there's any way of refuting that 

the Gibson Dunn investigation was not completed.  

We provided the emails where the lawyers from Gibson Dunn 

asked to set up time to meet with Mr. Colucci to speak with Mr. Colucci.  
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And he failed to participate in those discussions.   

And then right after that, they terminated Gibson and Dunn.  I 

don't want to say terminate.  They encouraged them to walk away from 

the assignment based upon I would say less than supported ethical 

claims by Mr. Goldstein. 

So, at this point, Your Honor, we've asked for a vetting.  And 

by the way, Mr. Clark says that all that's before the Court in the form of 

pleadings is Plaintiff's claims.   

Well, that's not true.  On Tuesday, we filed our answer to the 

complaint, as well as our counterclaims.  And we discussed in our 

counterclaims the general allegations within our counterclaims Mr. 

Colucci's activities and the ownership of Highway Data.   

And I believe the amount that Mr. Kemp was looking for that 

escaped him earlier was $100,000 was paid by way of Acuity and we 

believe through Highway Data.   

The amount for his -- that was paid to i-Heart Radio, his wife 

reported to him, was $215,000.  We know that he did not properly 

disclose initially.   

So there's more than enough reasons.  And it certainly has 

been a litany of paper, indicating that that vetting was not completed.   

I would also inform the Court that the vetting that was done 

initially Mr. McPhillin [phonetic] was done by Lucosky Brookman found to 

be flawed later on.  

And the initial vetting of Mr. Colucci was done by that very 

same firm.  So there's no confidence that should be given to that initial 
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investigation.   

So additionally, Your Honor, the --  

THE COURT:  I mean, at the end of the day, this is what's 

really kind of important at least in my view.  I can't overlook the mandate 

of rule and I'm talking about the NASDAQ Rules.  And this is 5605A.2.  

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  And it specifically focuses on the confidence of 

the investors, right?  It's right there in the rule.   

MR. PARKER:  That's right.   

THE COURT:  And it goes further.  It says, "It's important for 

the investors to have confidence that individuals serving as independent 

directors are not going to have a relationship with the listed company 

that would impair their independence, period.   

And it goes further.  Since the Board has the responsibility to 

make affirmative determination that no such relationship exists 

even -- exists though the application of Rule 56(a)(2).  And it goes 

further.  But my -- and it even lists out the types of relationships --  

MR. PARKER:  Correct.   

THE COURT:  -- and those types of things.   

And so, my question is this.  And has this been done as 

required by NASDAQ is the first issue? 

And secondly, I -- as a trial judge, I can't look -- overlook the 

mandate of the NASDAQ regulations.  Is that -- that's a two part 

question.   

MR. PARKER:  And the answers, Your Honor, no, the vetting 
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had not been completed.  We tried, and I say we, under Mr. Vanderbilt's 

position as Chairman of the Board, he selected Gibson Dunn.   

THE COURT:  And as a further point, I mean, I don't think the 

vetting should be necessarily, especially under this rule, an adversarial 

process.  And that's really an important point to make.   

MR. PARKER:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  I mean, I understand you're saying well, Judge, 

I can take his deposition, but that's going to be slanted.   

MR. PARKER:  I agree 100 percent, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  I mean --  

MR. PARKER:  Let me say right now we -- I'm not going to 

speak out of turn for Mr. Kemp, but I believe -- 

THE COURT:  I'm not saying -- I don't mean that in a negative 

way, but that's an adversarial process.   

MR. PARKER:  It is.   

THE COURT:  You know, versus having an independent 

investigation, but that's a slightly different animal.   

MR. PARKER:  And that's why we came to the Court.   

THE COURT:  And the reason why I bring that up, I would 

hope that whoever was independent wouldn't slant -- 

MR. PARKER:  Right.   

THE COURT:  -- arguments, right?  Just present facts and 

come to some sort of conclusion and make a determination as to 

whether the mandate of Rule 5605 has been met.   

MR. PARKER:  Correct, Your Honor.  That is 100 percent 
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correct.  Not unlike when the Court appoints at times experts to bring an 

opinion or recommendation to the Court separate and apart from the 

litigants.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. PARKER:  And so, that's what we're asking.   

THE COURT:  And sir, when I look at it through that lens, why 

would I not appoint an independent investigation if one hasn't been 

completed pursuant to the mandate of -- because this is what I would 

think I would have.  If there was an independent investigation then, 

wouldn't I have findings?   

MR. CLARK:  Sure.  Your Honor, you would get findings from 

the independent counsel I'm sure.  The -- all that I will say, Your Honor, 

and on to -- 

THE COURT:  Because I just want to make sure I'm correct 

on that because I've never been involved in a Rule 5605 independence 

investigation.   

But I think if you appointed independent counsel or someone 

to conduct that investigation, at the end of the day, there'd be a report 

produced and generated that would look in the definitions and make a 

determination as to whether or not there's been any violations of the 

definition of independence pursuant to the SEC rules.   

MR. CLARK:  And Your Honor, we're -- as Vinco, we're 

grateful for your support of the investors' confidence, the shareholders' 

confidence.   

But in respect, the NASDAQ rules have a way to police this 
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themselves.  And that's through de-listing the stock, which happened.  

And we've overcome that as a company.   

And so, we can, you know, Your Honor says that you're 

concerned and I understand that.  But the NASDAQ can police that on 

their own.  They can de-list the company shares, which would be awful. 

THE COURT:  That's not a good thing.   

MR. CLARK:  That hasn't happened.   

THE COURT:  That's not a good thing to happen.   

MR. CLARK:  It has happened for this issue.  And I only make 

that point, Your Honor, because we're kind of importing the NASDAQ 

rules and saying now under Nevada law, we have to do X.  

And I think that we don't need to do that, especially in this 

case, where you mentioned that the investigation would be slanted.  Of 

course, they're going to pull up everything they can on Mr. Colucci and 

have everything that the special counsel could possibly want and more 

I'm sure.   

And to give the special counsel that if it ended up being 

necessary, I wouldn't be --  

THE COURT:  Don't you think it would be fair to Mr. Colucci to 

have an independent investigation?   

MR. CLARK:  Well, whether it's fair or not, Your Honor, at this 

point, the -- where we stand is that they're going to do that.  They're 

going to have the adversarial process with him.   

And so, if we could -- if we could say, yeah, let's do an 

independent investigation, which would might be fair and easier for Mr. 
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Colucci, but he's also going to have to do the adversarial proceeding 

and do the depositions that you've already allowed the Defendants to 

do.  I just think it's duplicating the work at this point for a company that's 

already in a cash crisis.  So -- 

THE COURT:  But my question is this.  Maybe the 

independent investigator would come to a different conclusion or 

argument than Mr. Parker or Mr. Kemp. 

MR. CLARK:  Sure.   

THE COURT:  And I'm looking at it from a -- of a position of 

being fair to Mr. Colucci, right?  Because if they're truly independent.   

And just as important, too, I want it -- and I don't mind saying 

this unless someone's learned in Las Vegas in conducting these types of 

investigations, I think it would serve everyone best. 

And I don't know if L.A., Chicago, New York are the best 

places to go for that type of investigation, but based upon in the general 

sense, I would probably think they would be because it would involve the 

major economic centers of this country.   

We have law firms that are -- that conduct this type of event.  

Like Chicago, they have a couple of exchanges there.  You know, and 

I'm just trying to think.   

And, of course, New York is where most of all the trading and 

those types of things occur and so on, but I'm looking at it from a 

fairness perspective.   

MR. CLARK:  But from a fairness perspective, Your Honor, we 

did retain Howard & Howard to do some of these same investigations 
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into the -- 

THE COURT:  Well -- 

MR. CLARK:  -- the whistleblower complaint.   

THE COURT:  -- and Howard & Howard -- 

MR. CLARK:  That wasn't enough for the Defendants.  

THE COURT:  -- were retained by -- I'm looking at it from a 

purely independent perspective.  I don't mind saying that, because that's 

my question.  Wouldn't that be fair?  And you don't think it would be or 

wouldn't be or?   

MR. CLARK:  No, I don't dispute, Your Honor, that an 

independent investigation would be fairer or easier for Mr. Colucci to go 

through.   

What I'm saying is at this point, where we are in these 

proceedings, it would duplicate what the Defendants already planning to 

do.  It would incur a greater cost for the company itself for an 

investigation that he didn't evade really in the first place.   

I mean, he wasn't independent.  So that's my point, Your 

Honor.  And not --  

THE COURT:  I think it potentially could save time.   

MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.   

THE COURT:  Right?  Because I mean, look at it from this 

perspective.  We don't know, but because I'm looking at I don't mind 

saying it.  I'm giving everybody presumption.   

It's like counsel indicated before.  I'm not accepting anybody's 

arguments as far as who the bad guy or gal might be in this case.  I'm 
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not doing that.   

I'm letting the processes work.  And I'm just wondering would 

it be fairer to Mr. Colucci as far as an independent investigation? 

And just as important, say hypothetically if this independent 

investigator comes back and says, look, he's independent.  He doesn't 

meet the requirements, if he could say look, Judge, use this as a sword.   

They don't need to talk to Mr. Colucci about this anymore 

potentially.  There's a lot of ways this works out, right?  Or maybe it 

limits the scope.  I'm not sure, but I'm just thinking about what I perceive 

as issues down the road.   

MR. CLARK:  And Your Honor, I think I've conveyed my point.  

I think that -- 

THE COURT:  No, I understand.  I just wanted to offer that up.  

I mean, anything else you want to add, sir? 

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, I think you've hit every issue.  I 

agree with the Court's position.   

THE COURT:  I never have positions.  I'm not a litigant.  I 

always have comments.   

MR. PARKER:  I appreciate the Court's comments.   

THE COURT:  Yes, and thoughts.  And I share them with you 

on the record because that's what I'm thinking.  You know, and every 

time and I always tee it up because you don't have to agree with me.  

You can tell me, look, Judge, you're wrong and it's a lie.  I have no 

problem with that.  I just want to make sure you're right.   

Is there anything else?   
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MR. PARKER:  Nothing further, Your Honor.   

MR. CLARK:  Not for us, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  This is what I'm going to do.  And as far as the 

motion's concerned, last question, any idea as to cost?   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, my suspicion is it won't cost any 

more than what Gibson and Dunn intend to spend or, you know, I don't 

want to speak ill of Howard and their report, because they only 

interviewed those who were being charged with the violation.   

So plus they did it on a Sunday.  I really don't know how 

much -- I really don't know how much they spend on theirs, Your Honor, 

but my suspicion is it won't be any more than what the -- Vinco intended 

to spend originally.   

MR. KEMP:  Probably between 25 and 50.  

MR. PARKER:  Mr. Kemp is thinking somewhere between 25 

and 50.  I don't know if it will be that much or not, Your Honor, only 

because I don't have experience with doing the NASDAQ Independent 

evaluation, independent director evaluation, but given that there's 

information already available, they have a good starting point I believe.   

MR. KEMP:  Yeah, and Your Honor, and that's based on very 

premature conversations with opposing counsel.  Mr. Rulis is 0 for 10 if 

everyone agrees to it.   

No, seriously though, Your Honor, I think 25 to 50's probably 

what we're talking about here.   

THE COURT:  All right.  Well, I'm going to grab the request 

for -- and I feel as a trial court, I realize I'm not a federal court.  I get that, 
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but I can't ignore federal rules and regulations.  So they have an impact.   

Just as important, too, and I don't mind saying this at the end 

of the day, I actually think this is a fairer way to handle this, because 

we're going to appoint someone that's learned, independent, no 

relationship with the parties, that does this type of work pursuant to a 

court order.   

And as far as recommendations are concerned, when are they 

coming back?   

THE CLERK:  In a couple days before you, Judge.  We 

could -- it's just a status check. 

THE COURT:  Status check.   

THE CLERK:  Then -- 

THE COURT:  But we need them to come back in quicker 

than this.   

THE CLERK:  Absolutely.   

THE COURT:  What -- and because you need to -- one of two 

things we can handle it this way.  You can either agree or you can 

submit three names, assuming all three names or three firms are 

acceptable, we can just arbitrarily decide which one it's going to be.   

MR. KEMP:  Judge, I'm happy to submit three names and give 

them to counsel at the same time he gives me three names.  And then 

we can --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I'd rather have you agree.  But if you 

can't, we'll just, you know, they're all I would anticipate learned and 

experienced in this type of area.  They have a history of being the type 
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of law firm that conducts these types of investigations.   

And if you can't agree, I'll decide it for you, but I'm going to 

look at it from this perspective.  I would assume all names that would be 

submitted would be more than competent enough to accomplish this 

task, this investigatory task.  So that's kind of how I look at that.   

MR. PARKER:  Maybe we'll agree to something.  Pleasant 

surprise, I think.   

THE COURT:  Yes, you're here next week on the OST, so we 

should do this on 10/7, right?   

MR. PARKER:  Sounds great, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  1:30?   

MR. PARKER:  Perfect.   

MR. KEMP:  You said 10/7 at -- 

MR. PARKER:  No, 8 -- 9/7.   

THE COURT:  9/7.  9/7, right.  Okay.   

THE CLERK:  It's next Wednesday. 

THE COURT:  Next Wednesday.  Oh, okay, don't we have an 

order expiring today?   

MR. PARKER:  Yeah, that's the one we -- you already granted 

for us to continue the order, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. PARKER:  So we'll do an order confirming that, Your 

Honor.  We continue it for another 30 days. 

THE COURT:  We don't have a lot -- you know, I will admit my 

Law Clerk's really good.  Anyway, what about the 10 -- I think this -- we 
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have an October 5th hearing in light of the emails from Ray Camucci 

[phonetic].  Is that moot?   

MR. TASKA:  Sorry, Your Honor, can you repeat that?  I'm -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah, we have the -- wasn't there an issue 

regarding the email -- no, what was it?  It was the -- they had already 

produced them, right?   

THE CLERK:  This was in regards to SEC pass codes. 

THE COURT:  I'm sorry, SEC pass codes. 

MR. PARKER:  Yeah, I think that's been handled, Your Honor.  

We submitted an opposition, an email showing that we had given those 

pass codes.  So.  

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. KEMP:  And they haven't filed anything, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  And that's currently set for 10/5, right?   

MR. PARKER:  It is, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Do we need to keep that on calendar or?   

MR. PARKER:  Mr. Taska?   

MR. TASKA:  No, I don't think so.   

THE COURT:  We'll keep it -- no, we'll keep it on.  If you can 

tell me next Wednesday.   

MR. TASKA:  Okay, that would be great, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  We'll do that.   

MR. TASKA:  Can we go -- two more things, Your Honor.  One 

is I don't know that we agreed to Your Honor ruled that the order that's 

expired today gets extended a month.  I don't know that I heard that.  
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Maybe I missed it, but I think we agreed that the payroll issue --  

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. TASKA:  -- that's set forth in the order would be 

something that the three CEOs would take a crack at.   

THE COURT:  Right.   

MR. TASKA:  Correct?   

THE COURT:  Right, but here's my -- I mean, I don't know 

about the timing of that issue, but here's my question.  Do the three 

CEOs have an opportunity to do it before the next payroll comes up?   

MR. TASKA:  My understanding is the three CEOs are 

meeting every day.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.   

MR. PARKER:  Your Honor, it was my understanding that the 

order would remain in place for another 30 days.  The only issue that 

was subject to modification of the order was the one motion that was 

filed by Plaintiff to modify the appointing of Ross Miller and Lisa King, 

which we've already discussed.   

THE COURT:  I dealt with that.   

MR. PARKER:  There was no other particular provision of your 

order that was subject to the motion of today's hearing.   

MR. TASKA:  So I think this gets back into the thing that Mr. 

Parker and I have duking it out all day about, which is procedurally how 

does this work?   

To me, the order is -- expires by its terms.  And then, all these 

issues are up for discussion.  I think -- what Mr. Parker's saying is that 
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there's a presumption that that order continues on and that we have to 

move to get relief from it, even though it expires by its terms.  

THE COURT:  Well, actually, and I don't think that's 

necessarily correct, because my entire intent was to hold status checks 

and I sent the order at a shorter time period, because we could come in 

and discuss it at the status check.   

MR. PARKER:  Exactly.   

THE COURT:  It was never the intent to -- because what I 

wanted to do was the exact opposite.  I wanted to prevent you from 

having to come down and file motions and those types of things 

unnecessarily.   

MR. TASKA:  So the Court is ruling that the payroll has to be 

made rather than letting the three CEOs decide? 

THE COURT:  What I think we'll do is this.  And unless there's 

a problem, I -- where are we at from a payroll perspective?  Is this 

another payroll time period?  I mean, I don't know.   

MR. PARKER:  Every two weeks, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Every two weeks, right?   

MR. PARKER:  Plus the other vendor bills.  And so, that's 

why --  

THE COURT:  At the end of the day, this is what I want to do.  

I don't want to get involved in those -- that decision making.  I will say 

this that I will extend it until Wednesday of next week.  And then, it can 

be in the hands of the CEOs or to take care of this.   

MR. TASKA:  Just so I understand.  So you're saying that 
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payroll needs to be made between now and Wednesday of next week?   

THE COURT:  No, no, I don't know if it's due 

now -- due -- only when it's due.  I just want to make sure that I'm not 

cutting off payroll hypothetically for tomorrow.  Is payroll due tomorrow?   

MR. TASKA:  You know, I don't know.  Do you know? 

MR. CLARK:  I don't know. 

THE COURT:  You see what I mean?  I want to begin I want 

to give --  

MR. PARKER:  Yes, Your Honor.  Two weeks from the 19th.  

So this Friday would be -- 

MS. SUGDEN:  The 2nd. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, and my point is this.  I don't want to have 

people cut off of payroll tomorrow, but I want to give the Board, the 

co-CEOs an opportunity to make those decisions.  That's what I want to 

do.   

MR. TASKA:  So, okay, but so I understand Your Honor's 

ruling.  It's the Court's directive rather than it's the three CEOs to decide 

that payroll needs to be made this Friday?  

THE COURT:  This -- and then, we will -- my hope is we can 

stop it next Wednesday and I can put it in the hands of the CEOs.  

Because what I don't want to have happen is this.  We've had problems 

with meetings, right, and getting together, and issuing directives, and 

those types of things. 

MR. PARKER:  Not from the CEOs.  They're -- that was -- 

THE COURT:  And I understand. 
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MR. PARKER:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  But I don't want any impediment.  I want to give 

them an opportunity to get past this next payroll period and put it in their 

hands and let them conduct business for the company and exercise their 

business judgment.  That's what I want to do. 

MR. PARKER:  Sounds great, Your Honor. 

MR. TASKA:  All right, and the last thing, Your Honor, 

respectfully -- 

THE COURT:  Am I clear on that? 

MR. TASKA:  Understood, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. TASKA:  And the final thing on our list is just that we may 

seek an emergency writ on one or more of the rulings. 

THE COURT:  Sir, and that's -- you got to understand.  That's 

to be expected.  And that never impacts any decision I ever made.  I 

remember it's like one of the larger class action cases we had.  It must 

have ran up 50 writs, right? 

And the Supreme Court kept sending it back down again.  And 

sometimes they entertain and accept them, but I've been around long 

enough to understand that's part of the process. 

I'm not saying I'm the last word.  So that never offends me.  

That never impacts my decision making.  Don't worry about that 

because at the end of the day, you have to do what's in the best interest 

of your client.  That's all that really matters. 

MR. TASKA:  And I appreciate Your Honor's -- 
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THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. TASKA:  -- understanding. 

THE COURT:  I have a very thick skin on that.  I really do.  I 

mean, I just -- that's the process. 

MR. TASKA:  That makes -- 

THE COURT:  If the Supreme Court or the Court Appeals say, 

look, Judge you blew it on this, I will -- I'm a good soldier.  I'll follow their 

order. 

MR. TASKA:  And -- 

THE COURT:  I will.  I am. 

MR. TASKA:  -- in connection with that, Your Honor, we just to 

get it on the record, and I think I know what Your Honor's ruling would 

be, but we would ask for a -- I would orally move for a stay of all 

proceedings in this case until the Supreme Court decides whether to 

take our writ. 

THE COURT:  This is what I'll do, though.  I'll deny that 

without prejudice.  And all I mean by that is this.  From a fairness 

perspective, you're free to file it -- whatever appropriate motion 

regarding the stay at the district court level you want to file, but it would 

be unfair to make that type of decision without being fully briefed. 

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. TASKA:  Understood, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, but you're free to do it.  And I -- in fact, 

I'll entertain an order shortening time.  However, understand this.  This is 

a different issue.  It won't be as short, but I'll shorten it.  I'll make sure 
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they get enough time to file an opposition.  I give them 14 days to file the 

appropriate opposition. 

But it won't be October or November.  I would shorten it.  And 

sometimes, I do that on issues like this.  And you know, it depends on 

the complexity issues. 

Certain things, we can get in much quicker.  Like some of the 

things we've done, but things that are going to be really -- issues that are 

going to be really I would anticipate hotly contested, I want to make sure 

we -- both sides have a full and fair opportunity to make the appropriate 

written record.  Understand that? 

MR. PARKER:  Understood. 

MR. TASKA:  Understood, Your Honor. 

MR. PARKER:  Thank you so much. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. TASKA:  Thank you. 

MR. PARKER:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Have a good holiday. 

THE COURT:  Have a good day.  All right, everyone, enjoy 

your day. 

[Proceedings concluded at 4:14 p.m.] 

* * * * * * * 

ATTEST:   I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the 

audio/video proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability. 
      

       
     _____________________________ 

      Chris Hwang 
      Court Reporter 
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    Defendants. 
 

CASE NO.:  A-22-856404-B 
DEPT. NO.:  16 
 
DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO 
PLAINTIFF VINCO VENTURES, INC.’S 
MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF 
THE COURT’S AUGUST 17, 2022 ORDER 
PERTAINING TO MEETINGS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
Hearing Date: September 7, 2022 
Hearing Time: 1:30 p.m. 

Case Number: A-22-856404-B

Electronically Filed
9/6/2022 4:57 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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 This Opposition is made and based upon the Memorandum of Points and Authorities 

submitted herewith, the exhibits attached hereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any 

oral argument permitted by the Court. 

DATED this 6th day of September, 2022. 

KEMP JONES, LLP 
 
/s/  Madison Zornes-Vela   
Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
Madison P. Zornes-Vela, Esq. (#13626) 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Attorneys for Defendant 
Theodore Farnsworth  

 

 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

 Plaintiff’s Motion purportedly seeks clarification on the Court’s prior order regarding 

Board meetings. Like Plaintiff’s August 31, 2022 Motion to modify the Court’s Order appointing 

the three Co-CEO’s, this motion is another unfounded attempt by Plaintiff to re-write history and 

seek reconsideration of one of the Court’s prior orders.  

On August 17, 2022, this Court entered an Order, which, among other things, requires that 

any meeting of the Board of the Directors be held only if: (1) unanimous consent by the Board 

members to a meeting, with at least 48-hours’ notice and an agenda accompanying the notice; or 

(2) by order of the Court.  The Order further provides that the Board members must not 

unreasonably withhold their agreement to hold a board meeting and/or waive the 48-hours’ notice 

requirement.  

 The unanimous consent requirement for all Board meetings going forward was of 

particular importance to Defendants because of the events that transpired in July and August 2022, 
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which led to the instant litigation and many of the issues raised herein. Following Gibson Dunn’s 

aborted investigation and the issues it identified regarding Mr. Colucci’s independence, Mr. 

Colucci and his Board allies effectuated a series of tumultuous Board meetings in an apparent 

effort to remove current Company management and gain control over operations.  Mr. Colucci 

and his Board allies hijacked these meetings and crammed through numerous important decisions 

without any prior notice let alone discussion on critical corporate governance issues.  

To prevent these antics from continuing, and to assist the Court’s efforts to preserve the 

status quo and protect Vinco Ventures’s ongoing operations, Defendants proposed the unanimous 

consent requirement for all Board meetings going forward.  At the hearing wherein this term was 

discussed, counsel for Defendant Farnsworth made it clear that the intention of this provision was 

to require unanimous consent from all Board members to hold Board meetings.  This is the same 

counsel who drafted and submitted the proposed order that the Court ultimately entered as the 

August 17, 2022 Order.  There is no dispute the Court entered Defendants’ proposed position on 

this issue.  

 Despite the language of the August 17, 2022 Order and the unequivocal representations 

by counsel at the hearing and throughout the parties’ negotiations on this issue, Plaintiff now 

argues the unanimous consent requirement for Board meetings is simply Defendants’ 

“interpretation.” The Court must reject Plaintiff’s self-serving and contrived feigned ignorance. 

Plaintiff further contends this Order is unworkable, offering three unfounded and speculative 

reasons why. Because the Court’s 8/17/22 requires the Directors to not unreasonably withhold 

their consent to a Board meeting and provides a Board meeting can be held pursuant to Court 

order, Plaintiff’s arguments against the unanimous consent requirement are not persuasive. 

Defendant respectfully requests the Court deny Plaintiff’s Motion and reaffirm the unanimous 

consent requirement.  

/ / / 

 

/ / / 
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II. 

RELEVANT FACTS  

As this Court is aware, this action involves important corporate governance issues for 

Vinco Ventures and involves serious allegations regarding the actions and fitness of several Vinco 

Ventures directors, executives, and others involved in Vinco Ventures’s business operations.   

On August 17, 2022, the Court entered an Order (1) Directing Vinco Ventures, Inc. to Pay 

All Payroll Amounts Due and Owing on August 19, 2022; (2) Precluding Vinco Ventures from 

Terminating Employees; (3) Setting Limitations on Expenditures; and (4) Setting Limitations and 

Conditions Regarding Vinco Ventures Board Meetings (“8/17/22 Order”).1 The 8/17/22 Order 

requires unanimous consent for any Board meeting. Id. at ¶ 5. (“Plaintiff shall not hold any Board 

of Director meetings without 48 hours’ notice and an agenda must accompany the notice, absent 

unanimous agreement of the parties, which agreement will not be unreasonably withheld in the 

event of emergency, or order of the Court.”)  

Unanimous consent for holding Board meetings moving forward was one of Defendants’ 

unwavering requirements during the parties’ negotiations underlying the 8/17/22 Order.  This is 

because Mr. Colucci and his Board allies improperly utilized “Board meetings” to purportedly 

accomplish their hostile takeover. Between July 17, 2022 and July 24, 2022, “the Board” 

conducted a flurry of meetings wherein Colucci and his Board allies who joined his hostile 

takeover hijacked the meetings and crammed through numerous important decisions without any 

prior notice, let alone discussion on these issues.  See e.g., 8/15/22 Declaration of Roderick 

Vanderbilt at ¶¶ 15, 31-32; 8/15/22 Declaration of Lisa King at ¶¶ 13, 17, 19-20.  Additional 

meetings occurred after the Court granted Plaintiff’s ex parte request for the now-dissolved 

Temporary Restraining Order, which precluded Defendants’ involvement.  

 

1 Notice of Entry of the 8/17/22 Order was filed on August 18, 2022.  Because Plaintiff’s Motion 
refers to the August 17, 2022 Order, for the sake of consistency and clarity, Defendant will also 
refer to it as such.  
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At the continued hearing on August 17, 2022, after Plaintiff backed out of its previous 

agreement that no board meeting would be conducted without unanimous consent, the parties 

presented this as one of the remaining issues to the Court, explaining: 

MR. KEMP: Your Honor, so 4 and 5 are the points of contention at this point.  
So 4, what we proposed is that they wouldn’t hold any board meetings unless 
there’s 48 hours’, written notice, AND there’s unanimous agreement of the 
board members.  The parties agree to the board members. 

And we agree that we would not withhold consent in the event of the emergency.  
And in the event that they really need a board meeting, we withhold consent, they 
have the right to come to Court and ask the Court to authorize the board meeting. 

So that’s the proposal I thought was agreed to, but I guess it’s not now, but I 
think that’s a reasonable decision because right now, it’s 48 hours.  And we just 
want to stop this thing where everyone – notices the board meeting. 

Aug. 17, 2022 Recorder’s Transcript of Hearing Plaintiff Vinco Ventures Inc.’s Emergency 

Motion for Temporary Restraining Order and Preliminary Injunction (“8/17 Trns”), 45:19-46:6 

(emphasis added).   

In response to this proposal, Vinco counsel said that there was a need for an emergency 

board meeting that very night because of the alleged Hudson Bay default notice.  The Court then 

agreed to a Hudson Bay carve out: 

THE COURT: All right.  This is what I'm going to do.  Number one, as far as 
paragraph 4 is concerned, they’ll be a carve-out exactly like I indicated as it 
pertained to participation in the calling of the note …. 

8/17 Trns, 73:20-24.   

The Court signed Defendant Farnsworth’s proposed Order, which was consistent with Mr. 

Kemp’s and the Court’s statements on this issue.  See 8/17/22 Order.  

Until an email from John Colucci on August 27, 2022, Plaintiff never advanced the inane 

argument that there was an additional “carve out” that would allow for calling board meetings for 

any reason by giving 48-hours-and-one-second (or more) notice.  See Exhibit 1.  As Defendant 

explains herein, a 48-hour-and-one-second carve out would basically gut paragraph 5 of the 

August 17 Order in its entirety and allow Colucci and his Board allies free reign to continue the 

obstreperous conduct that triggered this litigation.  
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III. 

ARGUMENT 

A. The August 17, 2022 Order Requires Unanimous Consent from All Board Members 
to Hold a Board Meeting. 

Contrary to the Plaintiff’s contrived position, the 8/17/22 Order orders that Vinco 

Ventures Board meetings can be held only if: (1) all Board members consent to the meeting, at 

least 48-hours’ notice is provided, and an agenda accompanies the notice; or (2) by order of the 

Court. 8/17/22 Order at ¶ 5.  

Defendants’ proposed requirement for unanimous consent to hold Board meetings (which 

the Court adopted) was critical to Defendants because of Mr. Colucci and his Board allies’ 

egregious and outright abuse of the Board meeting process to purport to effectuate their hostile 

takeover. This entire controversy started when Mr. Colucci became a board member less than 

three months ago in mid-June, and within three weeks, launched a scheme to disenfranchise two 

duly-elected board members (Lisa King and Roderick Vanderbilt), terminate the long-standing 

CEO of Vinco (Lisa King) and eliminate any involvement by Defendant Farnsworth (the 

individual who raised hundreds of millions of dollars in financing for the company).  One 

unsavory tactic Mr. Colucci and the other two Board members involved in his scheme repeatedly 

employed during the hostile takeover was to schedule board meetings on quick notice, with no 

agenda, and then attempt to cram through critical votes to disassemble the company—e.g., the 

vote to fire 80% of the work force, the vote to fire King as CEO, the vote to fire Farnsworth as 

co-CEO, and numerous other actions to seize control of Vinco Ventures.2   

Given the egregious abuses to the board meeting process employed by Mr. Colucci and 

his Board member allies, Defendants unequivocally sought the requirement that all Board 

meetings be held with unanimous consent.  Prior counsel for Plaintiff was keenly aware this was 

Defendants’ position given that Defendants’ counsel made their position clear on the record.  8/17 

 

2 Some of these illicit actions were taken at purported board meetings conducted when Defendants 
King and Vanderbilt were restrained from attending by the TRO Vinco obtained without notice 
and which has since been dissolved by the Court. 
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Trns at 45:19-46:6.  There is no dispute Court signed and entered Defendant Farnsworth’s 

proposed order, which included the unanimous consent requirement.  Even if paragraph 5 could 

have been drafted differently, it does not negate the intent and purpose of this provision, which 

was made clear at the August 17, 2022 hearing.  While certain persons on Plaintiff’s Board may 

not like the 8/17/22 Order and want to again re-write history3, there is no legitimate dispute this 

Order requires unanimous Board consent to hold a Board meeting.  

The argument that the Court intended to require unanimous consent for meetings noticed 

in 48 hours but did not intend its Order apply to meetings noticed in 48-hour-and-one-second is 

nonsensical and is a blatant attempt to pervert and/or violate the Court order.  The Vinco bylaws 

already require 48 hours’ notice for board meetings.  If the unanimity requirement imposed 

by the Court is limited to meetings called with less than 48 hours’ notice, it is meaningless because 

such meetings are already prohibited without unanimous consent (or waiver).  The entire reason 

for the unanimity provision in the 8/17/22 Order was to prevent the Colucci-engineered chaos 

that the serial board meetings were inflicting. 

To support its improper attempt to inappropriately seek what is effectively reconsideration 

of the Court’s Order, Plaintiff argues the unanimous consent requirement is “unworkable” 

because it purportedly allows any single Director to interfere with the other Directors’ ability to 

satisfy their fiduciary duties, “clashes” with paragraph 2 of the same Order, and will force the 

parties back to Court every time the Board need to make a decision. These unfounded and 

speculative arguments are not persuasive.  

Plaintiff fails to explain how the unanimous consent requirement for meetings has any 

impact on a Director’s ability to “stay reasonably apprised of Company issues.”  Mot. at 8:14-16.  

A board meeting is not the sole vessel by which a director can stay reasonably informed of 

Company issues.  Regardless, while the 8/17/22 Order requires unanimous consent to hold a 

 

3 See Plaintiff’s August 29, 2022 Motion (seeking to undo the Court’s order appointing Ross 
Miller and Lisa King as Co-CEO’s with John Colucci, leaving Mr. Colucci the sole CEO); see 
also Defendants’ Opposition, filed on August 20, 2022. 
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Board meeting, the Order also requires that the Board members must not unreasonably withhold 

their agreement to hold a board meeting and/or waive the 48-hours’ notice requirement.  8/17/22 

Order at ¶ 5.  As Plaintiff also recognizes, the Court’s August 19, 2022 Order further specified 

that “[t]he Board and Plaintiff’s executives shall take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure 

Vinco Venture’s ongoing business operations.”  8/19/22 Order at ¶ 5.  The 8/17/22 Order also 

allows the parties to seek a Court order requiring a Board meeting be held.  8/17/22 Order at ¶ 5.  

Hence, if any Director believes its ability to exercise his or her fiduciary duties is impacted by 

another Director’s unreasonable refusal to provide consent to hold a Board meeting, Plaintiff 

can seek a Court order requiring a Board meeting.  Id.  

Plaintiff likewise fails to demonstrate how the unanimous consent requirement “clashes” 

with paragraph 2, which requires Board approval of any expenditure in excess of $250,000.  A 

Board meeting is not required to approve an expenditure as this can be handled via other means 

such as through written consent.  If any expenditure approval cannot be done by written consent, 

then the Board can hold a Board meeting to discuss the same, for which no Board member can 

unreasonably withhold their consent.  There is simply no inherent conflict between these 

directives.  

Finally, and for the same reasons, the unanimous consent requirement does not “force the 

parties back to Court every time the Board need to make a decision.”  Again, because the 8/17/22 

Order requires the Board member to not unreasonably withhold their consent to hold a Board 

meeting, Plaintiff’s contention here is unfounded and speculative.  In fact, the only reason the 

parties would repeatedly end up before this Court on this issue is if Mr. Colucci and his allies 

continue to try and use Board meetings as weapons to improperly promote their self-serving 

agenda.   

The Court should deny Plaintiff’s Motion.  The unanimous consent requirement for Board 

meetings was clearly discussed and understood to be part of Defendant Farnsworth’s proposed 

Order, which the Court entered as its own.  To the extent the 8/17/22 Order requires 

“clarification”, Plaintiff fails to demonstrate any legitimate reason the Court should reconsider 

the Order to remove the unanimous consent requirement for Board meetings.   
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IV. 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, Defendant respectfully requests that the Court deny Plaintiff’s 

Motion. The Court’s August 17, 2022 Order clearly requires unanimous consent from all Board 

member to hold a Board Meeting, and Plaintiff fails to demonstrate any reason the Court’s Order 

requires clarification.  

DATED this 6th day of September, 2022. 

KEMP JONES, LLP 
 
/s/  Madison Zornes-Vela   
Will Kemp, Esq. (#1205) 
Nathanael R. Rulis, Esq. (#11259) 
Madison Zornes-Vela, Esq. (#13626) 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 
Attorneys for Defendant 
Theodore Farnsworth  

 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that on the    6th       day of September, 2022, I served a true and correct 

copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF VINCO 

VENTURES, INC.’S MOTION FOR CLARIFICATION OF THE COURT’S AUGUST 17, 

2022 ORDER PERTAINING TO MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS via the 

Eighth Judicial District Court’s electronic service system on all parties on the Court’s service list.  

 
 
            /s/ Ali Lott                      
      An employee of Kemp Jones 
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From: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com
Subject: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 26, 2022 at 5:22 PM
To: Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com, Roderick Vanderbilt rodv1@msn.com,

Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com, Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com

Mike Distasio

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Elliot Goldstein elliot@whitedoveequities.com
Subject: Board meeting request for Monday 6pm

Date: August 26, 2022 at 5:38 PM
To: Lisa King Lking@Vincoventures.com, Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com, John Colucci

jcoluccivincoventures@gmail.com, Mike Distasio mike@chair.com

Please see attached board meeting request.

Have a fantastic weekend!

Elliot Goldstein, Partner
White Dove Equities
908.216.1254
Elliot@Whitedoveequities.com

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Lisa King Lking@Vincoventures.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 6:48 AM
To: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com
Cc: Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com, Roderick Vanderbilt rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com
Bcc: Nathanael Rulis n.rulis@kempjones.com, Teddy Parker tparker@pnalaw.net, Madison Zornes-Vela

m.zornes-vela@kempjones.com, Ted Farnsworth Tedfarnsworth@gmail.com, Erik Noble enoble@zash.global

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in order to 
accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This review will 
involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court order) to 
set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board meeting, one shall 
not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.

Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in Elliot's 
notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a corporate 
Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>

2022.08.17 
Order…gs.pdf

Vinco - Board 
Meetin…22).pdf
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From: Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 10:42 AM
To: Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com
Cc: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com, Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Roderick Vanderbilt Rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com

Lisa,

The unanimous vote in the court order is exclusively associated to calling a board meeting in less than 48 hours. To my
understanding Elliot and Michael have given us more than enough time.

As far as your opinion on the matter. Here is the job duty of the board:
“The board is responsible for protecting shareholders' interests, establishing policies for
management, oversight of the corporation or organization, and making decisions about
important issues a company or organization faces.”

If you feel this in not an import issue of the company and choose not to show up I’m sure the board will understand. 

Since you did not ask or suggest another date and time. Along with the fact you are telling the board what to do as a Interim CO-
CEO. The board of this company is our boss essentially. If they want to have the meeting they will.

Thank you

On Aug 27, 2022, at 6:48 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in order to 
accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This review will 
involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court order) to 
set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board meeting, one 
shall not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.

Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in Elliot's 
notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a corporate 
Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>
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From: Giovanni Colucci john@hwydata.com
Subject: Re: Please see Monday Board meeting request attached

Date: August 27, 2022 at 11:52 AM
To: Lisa King Lking@vincoventures.com
Cc: Mike Distasio mike@chair.com, Elliot Goldstein goldsteinelchonon@gmail.com, Roderick Vanderbilt Rodv1@msn.com,

Rod Vanderbilt rodvanderbiltvin@gmail.com

Lisa,

I have had three firms explain.

Everyone of them felt the same way.

The context of this is being used correctly in the email I wrote and you are referencing to.

John Colucci

On Aug 27, 2022, at 11:33 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

John,

Your understanding of the court order is incorrect. Have your attorney explain it to you.

Lisa

On Aug 27, 2022, at 10:42 AM, Giovanni Colucci <john@hwydata.com> wrote:

Lisa,

The unanimous vote in the court order is exclusively associated to calling a board meeting in less than 48 hours. To my
understanding Elliot and Michael have given us more than enough time.

As far as your opinion on the matter. Here is the job duty of the board:
“The board is responsible for protecting shareholders' interests, establishing policies for
management, oversight of the corporation or organization, and making decisions about
important issues a company or organization faces.”

If you feel this in not an import issue of the company and choose not to show up I’m sure the board will understand. 

Since you did not ask or suggest another date and time. Along with the fact you are telling the board what to do as a Interim
CO-CEO. The board of this company is our boss essentially. If they want to have the meeting they will.

Thank you

On Aug 27, 2022, at 6:48 AM, Lisa King <Lking@vincoventures.com> wrote:

Mike & Elliot,

I am not available for the requested Board meeting on Monday, August 29 and disagree that we need a Board meeting in 
order to accomplish the narrative for the special meeting. We can review a draft via email as soon as it becomes available. This 
review will involve all three co-CEOs as well.

As far as scheduling a Board meeting, the previous Court order said that it required unanimous Board approval (or Court 
order) to set a meeting.  See paragraph 5 in the attached. As a result of not having unanimous approval to conduct a Board 
meeting, one shall not occur on Monday, August 29 and no motions or votes can be taken.
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Additionally, I refuse to attend Vinco Ventures, Inc., a public company Board meeting on a private Zoom invite, as shown in 
Elliot's notice, unless required to do so by court order. Vinco Ventures, Inc. private Board meetings should be conducted on a 
corporate Zoom or Google Meets account. 

Kind Regards,
Lisa King
P + (315)-420-8036

On Aug 26, 2022, at 5:21 PM, Mike Distasio <mike@chair.com> wrote:

Mike Distasio
<Vinco - Board Meeting Notice (Meeting Date August 29, 2022).pdf>
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NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF VINCO 
VENTURES, INC. 

 
Dated August 26, 2022 prior to 6:00 PM ET 
Sent to each Board member via email 
 
To the Directors of Vinco Ventures, Inc. 
 
In accordance with the Bylaws of Vinco Ventures, Inc. (the “Company”), Michael DiStasio and Elliot 
Goldstein, two independent directors, are noticing a special meeting of the board of directors of the 
Company to be held on Monday, August 29, 2022, at 6:00 PM ET, via the zoom link below.  Attendance 
at the board meeting shall include current directors, the Company’s co-CEOs, John Colucci, Lisa King and 
Ross Miller, and the Company’s CFO, Phil Jones. 
 
The agenda of matters to be covered at this special meeting is below.  If a director has any additional matters 
to be included on the agenda, such director suggest such item for inclusion on the agenda via email to the 
entire Board by 12 p.m. August 29, 2022. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 
 

1. Narrative for the Special Meeting of the Stockholders scheduled for Tuesday, August 30, 2022. 
 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

REDACTED
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TAB 25 

TAB 25 
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Case Number: A-22-856404-B

Electronically Filed
9/6/2022 5:05 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

PA 000548



PA 000549



PA 000550



PA 000551



PA 000552



PA 000553



PA 000554



PA 000555



PA 000556



PA 000557



PA 000558



PA 000559



PA 000560



PA 000561



PA 000562



PA 000563



PA 000564



PA 000565



PA 000566



PA 000567



PA 000568



PA 000569



PA 000570



PA 000571



PA 000572



PA 000573



PA 000574



PA 000575



PA 000576



PA 000577



PA 000578



PA 000579



PA 000580



PA 000581



PA 000582



PA 000583



PA 000584



PA 000585



PA 000586



PA 000587



PA 000588



PA 000589



PA 000590



PA 000591



PA 000592



PA 000593



PA 000594



PA 000595



PA 000596



PA 000597



PA 000598



PA 000599



PA 000600



PA 000601



PA 000602



PA 000603



PA 000604



PA 000605



PA 000606



PA 000607



PA 000608



PA 000609



PA 000610



PA 000611



PA 000612



PA 000613



PA 000614



PA 000615



PA 000616



PA 000617



PA 000618



PA 000619



PA 000620



PA 000621



PA 000622



PA 000623



PA 000624



PA 000625



PA 000626



PA 000627



PA 000628



PA 000629



PA 000630



PA 000631



PA 000632



PA 000633



PA 000634



PA 000635



PA 000636



PA 000637



PA 000638



PA 000639



PA 000640



PA 000641



PA 000642



PA 000643



PA 000644



PA 000645



PA 000646



PA 000647



PA 000648



PA 000649



PA 000650



PA 000651



PA 000652



PA 000653



PA 000654



PA 000655



PA 000656



PA 000657



PA 000658



PA 000659



PA 000660



PA 000661



PA 000662



PA 000663



PA 000664



PA 000665



PA 000666



PA 000667



PA 000668



PA 000669



PA 000670



PA 000671



PA 000672



PA 000673



PA 000674



PA 000675



PA 000676



PA 000677



PA 000678



PA 000679



PA 000680



PA 000681



PA 000682



PA 000683



PA 000684



PA 000685



PA 000686



PA 000687



PA 000688



PA 000689



PA 000690



PA 000691



PA 000692



PA 000693



PA 000694



PA 000695



PA 000696



PA 000697



PA 000698



PA 000699



PA 000700



PA 000701



PA 000702



PA 000703



PA 000704



PA 000705



PA 000706



PA 000707



PA 000708



PA 000709



PA 000710



PA 000711



PA 000712



PA 000713



PA 000714



PA 000715



PA 000716



PA 000717



PA 000718




